
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

El Paso County Housing Authority 
 

 

Crystal LaTier, Executive Director 
719-520-6484 

Economic Development Department 
Nine East Vermijo Avenue 

Colorado Springs, CO 80903 
www.ElPasoCo.com 

 
 

Housing Authority Commissioners 
Jack Beuse, Chair 
Martie Stott, Vice Chair 
Beth Diana 
Steve Posey 

Kevin Walker 
 

 
EL PASO COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

Meeting Minutes 
November 8, 2023 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

The Board of Commissioners of the El Paso County Housing Authority (the “Authority”) met on November 8, 
2023, at 12:00 P.M., via a hybrid model including in-person (at 9 E. Vermijo Avenue) and the virtual Teams 
Meeting platform.  Martie Stott called the meeting to order at 12:00 P.M.  

 
II. ROLL CALL 

The El Paso County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners present were: 
 Martie Stott 
 Steve Posey 
 Beth Diana 
 Kevin Walker (virtual) 

 
The El Paso County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners absent were: 

 Jack Beuse 
 
Other persons present at the meeting were: 

 El Paso County Commissioner Cami Bremer – Housing Authority Liaison (virtual) 
 Crystal LaTier and Randi Davis – El Paso County Economic Development 
 Kieu Bugg – El Paso County Financial Services 
 John H.T. Bales – Kutak Rock 
 Mark O’Brien, Stacy Houston, and Misty Dalke – Raymond James (virtual) 
 

Ms. LaTier advised the Board that Commissioner Beuse would not be in attendance for the next couple of 
meetings. 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM SEPTEMBER 2023 



 

 

 Commissioner Diana moved to approve the minutes from September 2023, and, upon a second by 
Commissioner Walker, the motion passed unanimously. 

 
IV. FINANCIAL ITEMS 

A. Financial Reports 
Ms. Bugg provided an update regarding the Statements of Net Position, Revenues, and Expenditures as of 
October 31, 2023.  There were no questions or comments. 

 
B. Housing Trust Fund Commitments 
Ms. LaTier provided an update on the Housing Trust Fund commitments. As of October 31, 2023, the Authority’s 
Housing Trust Fund cumulative balance is $7,006,770 with outstanding commitments of $1,410,970 leaving an 
available balance of $3,795,800 for future funding requests if a $1.8M corpus is maintained. The outstanding 
conditional loan commitments are Cohen-Esrey’s The Launchpad for $410,970, GPR Properties’ II Bentley 
Commons for $500,000, and DBG Properties’ Royal Pine Apartments for $500,000. 

 
C. Turnkey Plus & Rehab Program Updates 
Ms. Davis provided an update regarding the Turnkey Plus Program denoting no new loans have closed, but four 
loans were paid off since the last meeting.  There were no questions or comments. 

 
V. ROCKY MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY LAND TRUST (RMCLT) FORGIVENESS REQUEST 

Ms. LaTier advised the committee that a forgiveness request was received from RMCLT concerning a property at 
1210 Hartford with an original HTF investment of $15,000.  Commissioner Stott questioned if this request had to 
be a forgiveness or if a subordination would be a possibility.  Ms. LaTier invited RMCLT Executive Director, Mr. 
Nate Clyncke, into the meeting at 12:17 PM to make a formal request.   
 
Mr. Clyncke advised the Board that the original homeowner at 1210 Hartford had passed away, and their family 
had done significant damage to the property.  RMCLT was able to gain control of the property and completed 
extensive rehab this past summer.  They are requesting forgiveness of the $15,000 HTF investment due to the 
rehab and legal costs incurred.  Mr. Clyncke stated that a subordination would not be possible due to a previous 
subordination due to a loan taken out to remediate basement flooding in 2014, but that a release and re-
encumbrance would be possible.   
 
Commissioner Diana asked how RMCLT funded the property rehab, and Mr. Clyncke answered that it was from 
their general operations funds.  Commissioner Stott questioned the Realtor fees shown on the request at 6%, 
asking if there were any discounts.  Mr. Clyncke stated that there was a typo in the figures because the RMCLT 
Realtor was only listing the property at 2% while the buyer’s Realtor was receiving the standard 3% fee.  There 
were no further questions. 
 

 Commissioner Diana moved to release and re-encumber the original $15,000 investment in the property at 
1210 Hartford, and, upon a second by Commissioner Walker, the motion passed unanimously. 

 
Mr. Clyncke exited the meeting at 12:30 PM.  Ms. LaTier asked the Board about legal and recording fees. 
Commissioner Stott stated that RMCLT would be responsible for all fees like any other HTF transaction, and 
asked Mr. Bales if his office would assist in prepping documents for the RMCLT closing.  Mr. Bales added that 



 

 

there are usually no legal fees for this type of transaction and that Kutak Rock would be glad to assist with the 
paperwork. 
 

VI. BENTLEY COMMONS II UPDATE ON INTEREST RATE 
Ms. LaTier explained to the Board that to avoid tax implications, the original loan for Bentley Commons I must 
be assumed by Bentley Commons II at the Applicable Federal Rate (AFR) which is currently at 4.19%.  This is an 
increase from the current interest rate of 3%.  Mr. Bales added that by the time closing happens the interest 
rate could be a little higher than 4.19%.  There were no questions or concerns. 

 
VII. HTF APPLICATION LIST 

Ms. LaTier provided an overview of the applications received for the Housing Trust Fund’s November 1 deadline.  
There were two new construction projects and two preservation projects.  She advised that the Board was only 
deciding at this point if they wanted to hear formal presentations from the applicants at the December meeting. 
 
The first application discussed was from Together We Grow for the Shadow Mountain Apartments, which were 
originally built in 2002.  Commissioner Posey stated that those apartments are currently higher rent due to their 
location, but that condition of the property will keep them from becoming market rate.  He added that the 
community needs properties at 80-120% AMI as well.  Mr. Bales mentioned that the Land Use Restrictive 
Agreement (LURA) for this property is in effect for another 12 years.  Commissioner Posey added that the Board 
is looking to fund projects with deeper affordability. 
 

 Commissioner Posey moved to deny funding for Shadow Mountain Apartments, and, upon a second by 
Commissioner Diana, the motion passed unanimously. 

 
Ms. LaTier started the discussion about Homewood Point stating that the Board would want to make sure there 
is a LURA in place to ensure the property remains affordable for another 30 years.  Commissioner Posey asked 
what happens if Homewood Point does not close by February 2024.  Mr. Bales responded that the applicant is a 
Real Estate investor looking to make a 1031 Exchange to avoid capital gains taxes from the sale of another 
property and needs to close Homewood Point by February 2024.  Commissioner Posey added that the applicant 
approached the City of Colorado Springs for funding as well, but that the city would not be able to do their due 
diligence in such a short time frame.  The Board discussed the area where Homewood Point is located and how 
gentrification and rent increases are likely within the next 10 years. 
 
Ms. LaTier pointed out that this is the third time the Board has had an application from the Colorado Springs 
Housing Authority for the Village at Homewood Point Phase 2.  Commissioner Posey stated that he would be 
interested in hearing their presentation as it seems to be a solid application with a closing date of February 
2024. 
 
There was minimal discussion about the application for Jet Wing Flats.  Commissioner Stott pointed out that this 
is an application by Greccio Housing and that EPCHA has had a long, successful partnership with Greccio. 
 
The Board decided to hear formal presentations for the Village at Homewood Point Phase 2, Homewood Point, 
and Jet Wing Flats applicants at the December meeting. 
 
Commissioner Walker exited the meeting at 12:58 PM. 



 

 

M. Stott 

 
VIII. PROJECT UPDATES 

Ms. Davis presented photo updates on 9 projects that started, finished, or have been under construction since 
the last update in April 2023.  There were no questions or concerns. 
 

IX. 30th ANNIVERSARY EVENT REVIEW 
The Board was asked what was done well at the event and what could be done better.  Commissioner Diana 
stated that everyone loved the cake.  Everyone agreed the venue was lovely and the staff decorated it nicely.  Mr. 
Bales added that the event was very professional.  Ms. Davis suggested future events be placed in community 
calendars to avoid having other big events at the same time and splitting the audience.  Commissioner Stott 
advised the Board that she came to another event hosted by the Economic Development office and enjoyed 
seeing the commitment to the rural areas.  She requested that past BOCC Liaisons receive invitations to future 
events such as these as they were so instrumental in projects over the years.  Current BOCC Liaison Bremer 
stated that she is going to share the event video with past liaisons. 

 
X. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Artspace General Contractor (GC) 
Ms. LaTier advised the Board that Artspace lost their GC and that a new GC has proven to be more costly.  There 
has been talk from the developer about not finishing the makerspace to save money.  Ms. LaTier added that the 
funders met, and Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA) is taking the lead to seek more information from 
the developers.  Commissioner Posey added that the makerspace is what made the project unique and that 
updates to the Board would be appreciated. 
 
B. National Association of Local Housing Finance Agencies (NALHFA) Conference 
Ms. LaTier informed the Board that the 2024 NALHFA Conference will be held May 1-4 in Las Vegas.  She asked 
that they think over the next couple of months about Board and/or staff attendance. 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned by Commissioner Stott at 1:11 P.M. 

 
 
______________________________________________ 
Martie Stott, Vice-Chair of El Paso County Housing Authority  
 
Public notice for this meeting was posted online via the El Paso County Agenda Suite on November 3, 2023. 
      


